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TO QUIET CERTAIN OLD CRIMINAL RECORDS WHICH
ARE BARRIERS TO THE EMPLOYMENT OF REHABILI-
TATED FORMER OFFENDERS

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 3, 1972

U.S. SENATE,
SuBcoMMITTEE ON NATIONAL PENITENTIARIES
oF THE COMMITTEE ON THE .J UDICIARY,
Washington, D.C.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 10 a.m., in room
6202, New Senate Office Building. Senator Quentin N. Burdick
presiding.

Present: Senator Burdick.

Also present: James G, Meeker, staff director, Ronald Er Meredith,
minority counsel, and Judith E. Snopek, chief clerk.

Senator Burpick, We are here this morning to begin formal con-
sideration of S. 2782, legislation to quiet certain old criminal records
ghich are barriers to the employment of rehabilitated former offen-

ers.

Although this is the first hearing we have held on this bill, these
hearings are a continuation of work started by this subcommittee
last year on the relationship between crime and unemployment, or
underemployment. We have accumulated enough evidence to con-
clude that there is a real relationship and that we must begin to
look for answers to some of the problems.

We have learned that a disproportionate share of the people who
end up in the criminal justice system had already falled in the
economic system. We also know that although most former offenders
who are released attempt to secure legitimate employment, it is the
ones who get and keep jobs who are most likely to stay out of
further trouble.

This subcommittee has concerned itself with several aspects of
crime and employment. In the Federal prison system, a fourth of
the inmates are involved in training classes or industrial work as-
signments related to jobs on the outside. We have encouraged ex-
pansion of these programs.

Job training is not the only answer, however, to the employment
of former offenders. There are many problems. Some involve desire,
some involve personal attitudes, but some of the employment prob-
lems of exoffenders are the result of the barriers we have erected
that bar legitimate employment.
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The difficulties which exoffenders have in obtaining jobs is well
known. In a 1968 survey of citizen attitudes toward crime, & ma-
jority of people felt that rehabilitation should be the end result
of a criminal conviction, and that getting a job was the number
one problem of former offenders. But a majority of these people
also said that they would feel uneasy working alongside someone
who had been convicted of a crime, and would hesitate to hire an
oxoffender for a job involving any degree of trust or responsibility.

These two dimensions of public opinion go in opposite directions,
and I think that this goes to the heart of the subject this subcom-
mittee has before it—how can we provide a reasonable way for re-
habilitated offenders to rejoin the economie system as full partners.

A key part of this dilemma has already been answered by a group
of former offenders who have acted responsibly when they were
trusted to do so. The Department of Labor, in a new program,
provides the money bond for any former offender who is denied a
bonafide job because he can’t be bonded through a regular insuror.
The loss rate among former offenders is better than the loss rate
for the rest of the population.

The law of corrections, however, is not full of similar success
stories. It js full of barriers erected, and opportunities denied. For
example, there is the case of the man who had successfully driven
a school bus for 10 years but lost his job when the school board

~ uncovered a 25-year-old criminal conviction.

There is the State prison which for years operated a vocational

“training program in barbering, but the State denied barber licenses

to all.convicted persons. _

The most painful realization which one comes to in studying
ecoriomi¢ barriers is the lack of a reasonable connection between the
past crime -and the future employment. So often the barrier is
against all convicted persons, and not just those who might have
committed related crimes.

- Disérimination against former offenders in employment, bonding

. angd' licensing denies legitimate employment to some. More often,

however, it is.the jobs with hope of personal improvement and

. future advancement which are denied.

One writer has said. the former offender must prepare himself

- “to- accept work in fields where the smallest number of people are

looking for work . ..” It is a nice way of saying he is more likely

" to be pushed into intermittent jobs with low status and low pay.

In these circumstances the past record of criminal behavior be-
comes a self-fulfilling prophecy. It is. a barrier which keeps the
former offender from achieving what we define as success in a lawful
society.

Oulb', society has become deeply concerned about crime and par-
ticularly about the recidivistic rate of crime, If we are to make
some headway against this problem, we must find the avenues which
will give former offenders the means to succeed in a lawful life-
style. The thought that we can safely drop some of the present
barriers to employment of rehabilitated offenders is an idea whose
time has come. (A copy of S. 2732 appears at this time in the record.)
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S. 2732

IN THE SENATE OF THE UNITED STATES

Ocroser 20,1971

Mr. Buroror (for himself, Mr. Baym, Mr. Brooke, Mr. Coox, Mr. Graver,
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Mr. Harrs, Mr. Hart, Mr, Huneaney, Mr. McGovery, Mr. MaANsriELD,
Mr. Mercarr, Mr. Moss, and Mr. Wirziass) introduced the following
bill; which was read twice and referred to the Committe on the Judiciary

A BILL

Relating to the 1mlliﬁcatio31 of certain criminal records.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Represento-
tives of the United States of America in Congress assembled,
That this Act may be cited as the “Offender Rehabilitation
Act”,

Src. 2. The Congress hereby finds that the rehabili-
tation of eriminal offenders is essential to the protection of
society ; that gainful employment is significant to the rehabili-
tation of criminal offenders; that misuse of past criminal rec-
ords is a substantial harrier fo employment and to the.

bonding and licensing to secure employment; and hereby
VII-0O
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declares that the proper use of criminal records will aid
the rehahilitation of offenders and protect the interests of
society.

Sec. 3. (a) Any person convicted of the violation of
awy law of the United States, shall, if such person is other-
wise eligible under this Act, be anthorized to make applica-
tion to the United States distriet cowrt in which such
conviction occwrred for an order to nullify in all records

all recordations velating to such conviction and any arrest,

indictment, hearing, trial, or correctional supervision in

connection thercwith as follows:

(1) in the ecase of any such person who, following
such convietion, was placed on probation, fined, or whose
sentence was otherwise suspended, such person shall be
cligible to make application at any time after the expira-
tion of the thirty-six calendar month period following
the date he is released from the jurisdiction of the court
in connection with such conviction; and

(2) in the case of any such person who, following
such conviction, was mandatorily released or released
on parole, such person shall be eligible to make applica-
fion at any time after the expiration of the sixty calen-
dar month period following the date he is released from
jurisdiction in connection with such conviction,

(h} Ii upon the receipt of an application pursuant to
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subsection (a) of this section the appropriate United States
district court determines that the person making such appli-
cation is an eligible applicant under this Act, and has, fol-
lowing the conviction with respect to which such applica-
tion is made, shown evidence of his rehabilitation, such court
shall, subject to the ~provisions of section 7 (c), of the Adct,
enter an order nullifying in all records, all recordations re-
lating to his arrest, indictment, hearing, trial, conviction,
and correctional supervision. Notwithstanding the foregoing
provisions of this section or any other law, the district court
for the distriet wherein such application is filed, ];11' tl—lz exer-
cise of its discretion and in furtherance of justice, may, at
the request of the applicant made at the time of the filing
of such application, transfer the application for hearing and
determination to the district court for the distriet- wherein
such applicant resides.

. SEc. 4. (a) Any person who is convicted of the viola-
tion of any law of the United States shall, if sucﬁ conviction
is shown on direct or collateral review or any héariug to be
invalid by reason of inmocence, or if such person, with respect
to such conviction, has heen pardoned on the gllouud of in«

nocence, and if he is otherwise eligible‘ to. make 'h‘pplioatipn

under this Act, be authorized to make application, to the

United States distriet court in which such conviction oc-

curred for an order to nullify, in all records, all recordations
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4
relating to his arrest, indictment, hearing, trial, conviction,
and subsequent correctional supervision.

(b} Ii, upon the receipt of an application pursuant to
subsection {(a) of this section, the approprinte United States
district court determines that the conviction with respect to
which such application was made was shown on direct or
collateral review or at any hearing to be invalid on the
ground of innocence, or that thc; applicant, in connection
with such conviction, was pardoned on the ground of in-
nocence, the cowrt, if it determines that such individual is
otherwise eligible to make application under this Act, shall
enter an order nullifying, in all records, all recordations relat-
ing to his arrest, -indictment, hearing, trial, conviction, and
correctional supervision. Notwithstanding the foregoing pro-
visions of this section or any other law, the district court
for the district wherein such application is filed, in the ex-
ercise of its discretion and in furtherance of justice, may, at
the request of the applicant made at the time of the filing of
such application, transfer the application for hearing and
determination to the distriet court for the district wherein
such applicant resides.

Sec. 5. (a) Any person arrested, indicted, or tried in
connection with the violation of any law of the United States
shall, if such person was found not guilty of the offense for

which he was indicted, was released from such arrest, or
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his indictment was dismissed, shall, if such person is other-
wise eligible to make application under this Act, be authorized
to make application to the appropriate United States district
court to nullify, in all records, all recordations relating to
bis arrest, indictinent, or trial, as the case may be.

(b) Tf, upon the receipt of an application pursnant to
subsection (a) of this section, the appropriate United States
district court determines that the applicant was found not
guilty of the offense with respect to which he was indicteti
or that he was released from such arrest or his indictment
was dismissed, and that such person is an eligible’ ﬁ;i)licant
under this Aect, the court, subject to the provisions of sec-
tion 7(e) of this Act, shall enter an order nullifying in
all official 1'09(11‘(18, all recordations velating to such arvest,
indictment, or Itria‘l, as the case may be.

Smc. 6. No person shal be authorized to make appli-
cation piu‘suant’ 0 this Act if— |

(1) he has been convicted of nny felony or mis-
demeanor (other than a petty offense) in sny Federal
or State court other than the offense with respect to
which such application is made, unless such conviction
was shown on direct or collateral review or any hear-
ing to be invalid, or such person, with respect to such
conviction, was pardoned on the grounds of innocence;

and
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(2) at the time of his application, such person was
under arrest or indictment or was on trial or had out-
standing a warrait for his arrest, in connection with
the violation of a felony or serious misdemeanor under
any law of the United States or any State.
8pc. 7. (a) The effect of any order issued by a court

pursuant to this Act nullifying any record shall, subject to
the provisions of subscetion (c) of this section and section
9, he—

(1) to prohibit the use, distribution, vr dissemi-
nation of any such record so nullified in connection with
any inquiry or use involvi.ng employment, bonding, or
licensing in conneetion with any business, trade, or pro-
fession of the person with respect to whom such order
was Issued; ’

(2) to vestore to such person any civil rights or
privileges lost or forfeited as a result of any conviction
the records with respect to which were nullified by such
order, including the right to vote, and to serve on
juries; and

(3) to prohibit the use of any such record for pur-
poses of impeaching the testimony of any person with
respect to whon such order was issued in any civil or
other action,

(b) Subject to the provisions of subsection (¢) of this
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section and section 9, in any case involving ua inquiry made
to any person involving any arrest, indictment, hearing, trial,
conviction, or correctional supervision, made, obtained, or
carried out in connection with such person and the records
with respect to which were nullified pursuant to an existing
order issned in accordance with this Act such person, if such
inquiry is made for any purpose involving employment,
bonding, or liccnsing in connection with any business, trade,
or profession shall he aunthorized to answer such inquiry in &
way so as to deny that any such arrest, indictment,~hearing,
trial, conviction, or correctional supervision (as the case may
he) ever occurred. No such person shall be held thereafter
under any provision of Federal or State law to be guilty of
perjury or otherwise giving a false statement by reason of
his failure to vecite or acknowledge suelr arrest, indictient,
trial, hearing, conviction, or correctional supervision.

(¢) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Act,
any court issuing an order pursuant to this Act may, if it
determines such action to be necessary in order to protect the
publie, qualify or otherwise limit the effect of such order to
the extent to which it determines necessary to assure such
protection,

(d) Any application made pursuant to this Act or an
order to nullify certain records shall include a list of all per-

sons, offices, agencies, and other entities which the appli-

L e,
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8
cant has reason to believe have such records or copies there-
of under their jurisdiction or control, and any such person,
office, agency, or entity so listed which receive a copy of any
such order so issued. '

Sze. 8. Any officer or employee of the United States
or any State who releases or 6the1"wise disseminates or makes
available for any purpose involving employment, bonding,
or licensing in commection with any business, trade, or pro-
fossion to any individual, corporation, firm, partnership, or
other entity, or to any department, agency, or other in-
strumentality of the Federal or any State government, or
any political subdivision thereof, any information or other
data concerning any arrest, indictment, trial, hearing, con-
vietion, or correctional supervision the records with respect
to which were nullified by an exisfiug order fssued pursuant
to this Act shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be sub-
ject to a fine of not more than $1,000 or imprisoned not
more than one year, or both.

Sec. 9. If, at any time following the issnance of & nulli-
fication order pursuant to this Act the person with respect
to whom such order was issued is convicted of any felony
or misdemeanor (other than a petty offense) under any
Federal or State law, the Identification Division of the Fed-
eral Bureau of Imvestigation shall notify the elerk of the

United States distriet court in which such order was issued
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9
of that fact. Upon receipt of such notification, such court,
if such convietion is not thereafter reversed or otherwise set
aside and the time for appeal in connection therewith has ex-
pired, shall enter an order rescinding such nullification order
and shall notify all appropriate departments, agencies, and
other entities to that effect.

- SEc. 10. Prior to the release of any person from the
jurisdiction of the court or from .corrlgctiom\l supervision who
may thereafter be eligible to make application for a nullifi-
cation order pursuant to this A‘ct, an appropriate officer of
the court, in the case of an acquittal or dismissal, in the case
of a conviction, shall explain to such person the procedure
for applying for a unullification order pursuant to this Act,
and shall provide necessary forms in connection therewith.

Seo. 11. Any person arrested, indicted, tried, or con-
victed in connection with the violation of any State law shall,
if the records with respect to such arrest, indictment, trial,
conviction, or correctional supervision were expunged, sealed,
or otherwise nullified under an order issued pursuant to State
law, be eligible to make application to the &ppropriaté United
States district cdurt for an order extending the effect of such
State order to each of the other several States, and to the
United States. Upon receipt of such application the United
States district court shall have jurisdiction to enter an order,

the effect of which shall be to extend such State order to
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10
each of the other several States and to the United States. No
such Federal order shall be issued unless the applicant, at the
time of his application, is within the purview of section 6 of
this Act.

SEe. 12. Nothing in this Act shall be construed as amend-
ing or otherwise altering or affecting the provisions of section
404 of the Controlled Substances Act or section 504 of the
Labor-Management Reporting and Disclosure Act of 1959.

SEo. 13. As used in this Act, the term—

(1) “State” means any of the several St es of the

United States and any political subdivision thereof, the

District of Columbia, the Virgin Islands, Guam, and the

Commonwealth of Puerto Rico; and

(2) “indictment” includes any information.

Seo. 14. Notwithstanding any .other provision of this
Act, no Federal courts shall have jurisdiction to consider any
application for nullification of records involving any offense
arising out of or punishable under section 84, 1111, 1112,
1114, 1201, 1751, 2031, 2113(d), 2113 (e)., 2381, or
2383 of title 18, United States Code, or. section 902 (i) of
the Federal Aviation Act of 1958, as amended (49 U.8.0.
1472 (i)).
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I believe Senator Hart has a statement here and I ask vnanimous
consent that it be made a part of the record, at this time,
(The prepared statement of Senator Philip A. Hart follows:)

STATEMENT OF ‘SENATOR PHILIP A. BART

HEARINGB—FEB, 8, 1972

I regret not being able to be with you this morning to hear the testimony of
my friend and constitient, Mr. Stephen I. Schlossberg, on the pending bill,
S. 2782, His thoughtful testimony is always helpful to us.

I am pleased that this subcommittee has begun to examine some of the real
issues involved in the correction and rehabilitation of eriminal offenders.

We, as members of Congress, are accoiintable for the institutions and services
which we authorize, to see that they are meeting the nation’s needs. In the case
of penal institutions and correctional services, I think that we are accountable
not just for their efficient manfigement, but for their success in achieving what

-society expects—that somehow offenders will be returned to soclety as law-

abiding citizens,

These institutions of criminal justice can only deal with certain aspects of
crime, and are neither the beginning nor end of it. The breeding grounds of
crime remain the underlying unsolved problems in our society, and any remedy
which we fashion to deal with it must relate to the community as a whole.

Most of the individuals who are processed through the criminal justice
system have been losers in their communities, and particularly losers in the
economic system. PR

For them, a criminal record is not a deterrent to crime, but a further deter-
rent to achieving the minimum level of economic security which is required
to achieve a stable, lawful pattern of behavior.

I commend the Chairman for his willingness to go into this difficult problem.
Because of his leaderskip, we have been exposed to this serious problem, and
must now enact legislation which will provide a carefully constructed solu-
tion.

The vital moment for the rehabilitated offender is the moment he applies
for a job. The means we provide for the individual to handle the fact of his
past record on an application form or in an interview 1s of crueial importance,
and we must weigh this matter with great care.

Questions may arise regarding such problems as:

(1) Unexplained gaps in a job applicant’s personal history.

(2) Whether a shorter waiting period of good behavior before an order can
be obtained would be more effective.

(3) The appropriateness of authorizing the ex-offender to deny his past con-
vietion,

I am sure these hearings will expose these questions so that the best possible
solution can be offered to our colleagues for legislative action,

Senator Burpick. And Senator Bayh sent his regrets, too, that he
could not be here to hear the testimony, Mr. Schlossberg.

Our first witness this morning will be Mr. Stephen Schlossberg,
general counsel of the United Auto Workers in Detroit.

STATEMENT OF STEPHEN I. SCHLOSSBER®, GENERAL COUNSEL,
UNITED AUTO WORKERS, DETROIT, MICH., ACCOMPANIED BY
JACK BIEDLER, LEGISLATIVE DIRECTOR, UNITED AUT0 WORK-
ERS, AND EDWIN FABRE, ASSISTANT GENERAL COUNSEL,

UNITED AUTO WORKERS
Mr. Scurosseere. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
My, Chairman, I have with me Mr. Jack Beidler who is the legis-

lative director of the UA'W and Mr. Edwin Fabré who is assistant
general counsel of the UAW.

78-814 O—73——2
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Mr. Chairman, our statement is relatively brief, and I would ask
your indulgence if, after I finish with our prepared statement, you
will give a very few minutes to Mr. Fabré for a statement that he
wishes to make orallv on the record.

Senator Burpick. Very well; be glad to. .

Mr. Scurosssrre. Thank you.

Mr. Chairman, members of the committee:

The ' International Union, United Automobile, Aerospace and
Agricultural Implement Workers of America, UAW, is an organi-
zation composed of nearly a million and a half members. Long ago
this union determined that it could not properly serve the full and
complete interests of its members and their families if it confined
itself to narrow, parochial interests. We have come frequently to
Capitol Hill and to various Government agencies to seek, in behalf
of our members and their families, avenues for the improvement of
the quality of American life. We have testified before this committee,
for instance, on such broad matters as electoral reform, equal rights
for women. civil rights and on nominations to the Supreme Court.
In that spirit we come here today.

Our union welcomes this opportunity to testifv in favor of Senate
bill 2782 and to suggest some improvements to it. The TTAW believes
that a person who has paid his debt to society should not be pre-
vented from taking his rightful place in society and in the labor
force because of previous indiscretion or transgression of the law.
All of us are familiar. undoubtedly, with the model citizen whose
path to a distinguished life or carcer is blocked by the words: Crimi-
nal record. A bill such as the one before your committee is needed
Ii:"lor many reasons, Mr. Chairman, only two of which we will discuss

ere.

THE PROBLEMS OF RECIDIVISM

Many leading authorities on criminology have taken the position
that many recidivists are such because they find themselves in the
position of having had few alternatives available to them. The sys-
tem presently works this way: The released convict, having served
his sentence and, theoretically, paid his debt to society, nevertheless
finds employers unwilling to hire him, finds that he is not bondable,
quickly learns that any skills or training that he may have amassed
while in prison is neutralized, if not nullified, by the inability to
procure meaningful or gainful employment. Thus, after imprison-
ment, his second period of punishment begins. Social and economic
ostracism often provide a worse punishment than jail. The alterna-
tives are bleak: Welfare, which strips him of much of his dignity,
not to mention the burden it places on society; dead end jobs, which
leave him in the lowest economic strata as well as with the stark
realization that the job soon may be phased out or mechanized out
of existence; or a return to crime. Faced with these possibilities, the
exconvict faces, at best, a relatively hopeless future. Such a set of
circumstances seems destined, in too many cases, to lead to the enact-
ment of a vicious, self-fulfilling prophecy: The first criminal act,
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impri : d by unrealisti-
lowed by the imprisonment and release, followed by i
gglll; drab thernativ%s, ending with the commission of another crilme.
This cycle satisfies only those who would have us believe that there
is some validity to the offensive observation, once a criminal, always
a criminal.

THE PROBLEM OF UNDERUTILIZATION OF MANPOWER

The presence of a criminal record often precludes .a.perston ifxi‘gm
consideration of a wide range of professions: law, medicine, %ac i 1 1%1"
law enforcement, to name just a few. At a period 1nft1m_e w wgwell
society is both erying out for quality in the above pﬁro gssdlotr}lls, illuxur
as experiencing a woeful shortage, we cannot be al or el'ﬁ 3 exceL}t,‘,
of denying aldmissi(oln to a professional, sufficiently qualine P

minal record. . , )

fo%}lgglrtunately, many persons who have prev1qus1:y been1 conv1ﬁ1;c;%
of a crime preclude themselves from even cons1<:1e11tng1 megsk'gn o
licensing, and thus rejectlon, 1S & factor. The S%na e msf z; o 0, 10
the recent past, some ferward-looking steps in t e areat 0 g & eing
opportunities to minorities and dlsz_tdvantaged glolupls o'olotic;n ng
college and job training. Yet, notwithstanding S}lclfe°1$ al on, the
hope it provides is no more than a cruel hoax or %n '%lfilglgcmlization
to many whose criminal records will only act as a bar to Tes

reamn. )
ot écglgress has long been aware of the problems Whm_hhfa%e 3 peclfx?él
who has been convicted of a crime and must_live wit ltdabre rd.
As early as 1950, legislation to quiet criminal records bllad een on-
acted into law. In 1950, the Youth Corrections Act ena el 8 lymi1 2
ful offender to have his record expunged upon showing that he : a
been rehabilitated and readjusted. The 91st Congress took egrenf 3111:‘;
ther steps in regards to nullifying criminal records 1n1pzssg,.,§h% tne
Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and Contro cd,C e DT
eanized Crime Control Act and the D.C. Court Reform an ¢ I‘_11md 0
Procedure Act. All of these, while extremely 1mportan}t;, alh e ’ ﬁ
reach a large group of persons. It is because of the breach s

remaining that a bill such as S. 2782 is necessary.’
THE BILL AND SOME NEEDED AMENDMENTS

ill. while undoubtedly a big first step, falls short of alleviat-
inglgﬁebwées of many reform)éd convicts. For example, the act "vo%}lld
mﬁy apply to first offenders. We feel that by this shqrtgomm}«lg in ¢ 3
bill, all persons who, while having two or more conv1ct1?ns, ! }:;ve e1
exemplary lives since their last offense are excluded from the poo

sons affected. ) . )
Oftg%las,orlninimum, we urge this committee to add language Whlchkwgl
permit a person with only two strikes against him, so to_spea ) 0
be included within the purview of this legislation. Sometimes, i is
the second offense and convietion which lead a person to thebrea liza-
tion that crime does not pay. Thus, second offenders should be given

.ﬁ»‘
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the same consideration under this act as first offenders. For these
persons, protection under this act is sorely needed.

Similarly, this act does not speak to the issue of whether several
counts of a crime are to be handled as one offense or multiple. For
example, if a person is convicted of possession and sale of stolen
goods as well as transporting them across State lines, does this mean
that he is guilty of one or three offenses? We are of the opinion that
the logic of the circumstances as well as the intent of the act dictate
that multiple counts be deemed as one action, i.e., one offense.

In section 4, of the act presently under consideration. it is unclear
whether a person, whose conviction has been held invalid, by review
or appeal, must also wait for a period of 3 to 5 years before applying
for an order to quiet the criminal record. This same lack of clarity
is present in section 5 of the bill which speaks for circumstances
where an arrested party is released, an indictment is dismissed or an
accused is found not guilty. Does a person in these categories, too,
have to await the passing of the 3- to 5-year period? )

We would propose that, where a person falls within the ambits of
section 4 or section 3, such persons be immediately eligible to petition
the U.S. district court to order a nullification of their records. It is
our view that to do otherwise would be tantamount, to penalizing one,
not for a criminal conviction, but rather for being unfortunate
enough to have been arrested. indicted. or found innocent after a trial.
The better view is to allow the immediate expunging of the record se
as to encourage the potential for gainful employment. The basic pre-
sumption of our legal system, that is, one 1s innocent until proven
guilty, dictates that a person so exonerated be permitted an immediate
means of silencing any criminal records.

The above-cited legal presumption of innocence similarly leads us
. to recommend to the committee that section 6(2) be modified. Under
section 6(2), an otherwise qualified applicant could not seek a quiet-
ing of his previous criminal record if he was under arrest or indict-
ment or was on trial or had an outstanding warrant for his arrest,
in connection with the violation of a felonv or serious misdemeanor
under any law of the United States or any State. Under the language
of this bill at present, one who seeks an order to expunge is deemed
unworthy not because of a second or subsequent criminal conviction
but simply because there is an arrest. warrant for arrest or reason
to believe that he will be found guilty of a subsequent crime. In
short, the mere allegation, substantiated by an arrest, warrant or
trial, no matter how specious, is sufficient to deny a man the protec-
tion otherwise afforded him by this act.

The potential for abuse is very grave should mere arrest serve as
the mechanism by which a new start is short-circuited. Many mem-
bers of the Senate have decried the arrest procedures of some police
forces who, when confronted by mass but peaceful demonstrations,
feel compelled to make mass arrests not due to unlawful behavior
but often due to frustration. A person caught in such a sweep would
be denied the effects of this bill. We urge that this committee seri-
ously consider modifying this act s6 as to continue to give credence
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to the time-honored theory that & man is innocent until proven
guilty. We do not wish to suggest that section 6(2) will be abused
but we do fear that an inadvertent or erroneous arrest will under-
mine the general thrust and purpose of this act. :

We are seriously concerned also about the use, distribution or
dissemination of the nullified record. Section 7 of this act does place
prohibition upon the use and disclosure of previous criminal records
and logical inconsistencies.

The general thrust of section 7(b) is to authorize lying as to one’s
previous record of arrest, conviction, indictment, incarceration, et
cetera. In no other area of the law is one given congressional per-
mission to lie or deviate, drastically, from the truth. We would pro-
pose that this committee adopt a more sound policy. We would sug-
gest that this act contain language prohibiting the inquiry into a
person’s criminal background unless the question contains an ex-
culpatory proviso. '

Speaking in the June 1969, edition of the American Bar Associa-
tion, Journal, Pasco L. Schiavo said in his article, “Condemned by
the Record”:

In addition to provision for expungement of the record, legislatures should
enact prohibitions against inquiry as to whether a person had been convicted
of a crime unless there is a qualifying clause: Which has not-been annulled or
has occurred within the past 5§ years. Questions as to arrest only should be
completely prohibited. (Vol. 55, p. 548.)

We indeed are somewhat troubled by the logic which- demands
that the truth be told when under oath but cut back such policy
in special cases. .

Moreover, in the employment setting, we fear that notwithstand-~
ing this act, employers who ask a question of arrest or conviction
will feel justified in dismissing an employee where he denies a
criminal record by virtue of a nullification of same. In short, man-
datory elimination of such questions is the only realistic alternative
to the language of the act. '

We would also suggest that the committee consider a review pro-
cedure. Under this procedure, an applicant who seeks to quiet his

records could appeal an adverse decision to a three-judge panel for
review. It is our feeling that should the request for a nullification
order be denied, the rejected party should be entitled as a matter
of right to appeal such a decision.

Moreover, where the application is denied, the applicant should
be given a reason, in writing, for such a denial. The written denial
and rebutting evidence could therefore be the record for a review
by a three-judge court sitting in the same district in which the
application was made. Justice and fairness dictates that oiae man
sl}llould not serve as the judge of last resort in matters as crucial as
these. -

We focus our attention now on the time limitations as estublished
in section 3(a) (1) and section 3(a) (2). We propose that the period
which must elapse before an application can be made should be sub-
stantially reduced. Under Senate bill 2732, a person who, following
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conviction, has his sentence suspended, is given probation, or who
is fined in lien of an incarceration myst wait 86 months before he
is eligible to petition the court. We think the period should be re-
duced to 12 months,

Consider, by way of a hypothetical case, the following: John,
age 22, is convicted of a crime and given a 2-year suspended sen-
tence. In the 2 years, in which he is under the court’s jurisdiction,
he is neither arrested, tried nor convicted of any subsequent crimes,
He is now 24. Under the proposed bill, he must allow 3 additional
years to elapse before he may seek a court-ordered expunging of
his record. Thus, finally, at age 27, he may say “I have never been
arrested, or convicted.”

‘No beneficial purpose is served by the lengthy 36-month period.
In fact, we faii to see the logic of the stringent requirement which

forces him to await the completion of the time he must remain

under the “jurisdiction of the court in connection with such convic-
tion.” Where a person has been fined, had his sentence suspended, or
placed on probation, he should be eligible for a nullification order
1 year from the day the sentence was passed, or became final.

Section 8(a) (2) places a 5-year waiting period upon a person
who has been incarcerated. This period is far too long and should
indeed extend to a period no greater than 8 years. Our recommenda-
tion to the committee is that a person tried, convicted and sentenced
be eligible to apply for the benefits of this act 8 years after the
date of his release from prison regardless of whether this release
was through parole, commutation of sentence, or a clemency order.
We see no useful purpose served by forcing a long period to elapse
before one may petition the court for a nullification order.

In the Congressional Record of October 20, 1971, you, Mr. Chair-
man, stated:

I do not believe that the offender should forget what he has done. that is
part of his rehabilitation. But there is a time when the records of his crime
cease to have any value in determining his eligibility for employment, bonding
and licensing,

We agree with this proposition. The events which have rocked
our penal institutions over the past year, tragic in many instances,
violent in many others, have pointed out a need for real criminal
reform and criminal rehabilitation. The Offender Rehabilitation
Act is a meaningful first step toward a sane, sound and hope-
mspiring prison reform policy. Prison reform must be based on
principles of hope for the individual prisoner. If our society fails
to propose and pass legislation which inspires a wrongdoer to hope
for a second chance, we will be perpetuating a despair similar to
that expressed by Dante in his epic, “The Inferno,” when he said:

“Abandon hope, all ye who enter here.”

We, therefore, urge the passage of S. 2732 with the improvements
here suggested.

I would like to add, Mr. Chairman, one or two personal observa-

tions before I take advtntage of your kind indulgence and introduce
Mr. Fabré.
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We have, as the president of one of the UAW locals in the Mid-
west, a man who was convicted of bank robbery as a youth. He was
enabled to run for office the first time only by a whisker and by an
interpretation under the Landrum-Griffin Act which prohibits Eeople
from running within 5 years. And the legal question we had before
the parole board was whether the 5 years ran from the time the
sentence was concluded or the end of the probation period, because
it had not been 5 years since the probation period ended when he
first ran for office. '

We were very fortunate in having the help of Mr. Bennett, the
former Director of Prisons of the United States, who is & superb
human being, and we were able to get this man qualified to run. I
can tell you that he now presides over one of the best local unions
in the UAW, and has not only been a model citizen in the sense
of citizen participation and union participation but this man has
taken upon himself the job of prison reform and at his <wn expense
has toured prisons and talked to prisoners about rehabilitation. He
is Iilore than a model citizen. He is one who contributes on a larger
scale. L

I want to add that it has been my experience as a representative
of unions, dealing with some of the employment problems, that one
of the festering problems we have is where a man -g6és to X com-
pany and works 5, 10, 15 years for the company and has invested
those valuable years of his best earning capacity and faithful serv-
ice to the emplever, and, then, some personnel director finds a
falsified record and “When this man came to us 15 years ago, he
falsified the record when asked whether he had been arrested or
whether he had ever been convicted of same felony”; and, then, we
find that man, after all of those years of useful service, in. many
cases, out. And umpires and arbitrators are very harsh about the
statements which are direct lies. We have been fortunate in the
Big 3 automcbile companies in énacting statutes of limitation on
these employment questions so that after so many. years we have
evolved a private system of law which expunges any misconduct
in the filling out of an application. '_

Though, as the employers began to hire the people that had
been excluded from society and who had not been given a chance and
have suffered over the years, the employers having been urged to do
this with this Union, indeed, leading the way, you are going to find
more and more of these people who, through fear and misunder-
standings and frustrations, are unable to bring themselves to fill out
an employment record correctly, or an employment application cor-
rectly, when it asks that question. I think that the value of the fifth
amendment comes clear to a worker who might have condemned it in
the days of Senator McCarthy—talking about the old Senator
McCarthy, Joe. In those days, many workers had some contempt for
the fifth amendment, but today when a worker finds that he has to
put down on paper how bad a guy he was 5 years ago or 10 years
ago and what mistakes he made, knowing so well that that may be
his economic death sentence, he then appreciates the beauty and the
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morality of the principle that no man should be called upon to be a
witness against himself.

And, now, Mr. Chairman, unless you have some questions of me, I
would take advantage of your kind indulgence and introduce this
young mé&n next to me, Edwin Fabre, who is an outstanding new
graduate from the University of Michigan and a new lawyer. He
has just been admitted to the bar in the State of Michigan in the last
couple of months, and he has joined.the staff of the UAW as assist-
ant general counsel. While he was at the University of Michigan, he
had the honor of being the president of the Black Action Movement,
called BAM, at the University of Michigan, And when we were
interviewing him for employment, I spoke to the president of the
University of Michigan, and I said to him: “What do you think of
Ed Fabre as a lawyer.for the UAW?” He said, “He is not only a
superb intellect but I want to tell you that he negotiated the pants
oft of me when we had a confrontation,” :

So, with great pleasure—unless you have some questions—I will
call on Mr. Fabre.

Senator Burpick. I think I will defer my questions until Mr.
Fabre is through. :

I want to say that as long as you could not be a graduate of the
University of Minnesota, I am glad you are a graduate of the Uni-
versity of Michigan.

You may proceed.

Mr. Faere. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I also support the UAW’s
position on the Senate bill before you.

However, I do think that there are some additional matters which
should be considered in terms of giving the bill some possible amend-
ments, et cetera. The bill goes to the question of first offenders only.
I have a great deal of difficulty with that particular point of view,

rimarily because it is often the case that one turns to crime as the
ast resort when shut off from the economic markets, and I think
there have been volumes upon volumes, long before and long after
the Kerner Commission report stated, in effect, that we do have a
society consisting of two societies, one black and one white, and they
are not eiual. We do have a great problem in terms of the racial
olicies of employers and of many State governments in terms of
hiring practices. Therefore, many minority-group citizens—and I
think primarily black citizens—are shut off from a real means of
getting into the economic market to begin with,

Similarly, I think we ought to consider—and ‘consider very seri-
ously—the fact that the eriminal law—adding to it the economic
realization (in quotes)—of the United States is, in fact, stacked
against black citizens and, I think, most minority-group citizens.

For example, as we look at arrest figures, I believe that it was in
1967 that the President’s Commission on Criminal Law Enforcement
and Administration of Justice did a rather large study-and found
out that while black citizens made up 11 percent of the population
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in America they represented 28 percent of the arrests. Of that 28
perceni; of the arrests, better than 65 percnt were simply arrested on
suspicion or were arrests which never led to a conviction. -

Thle fact is, in fact, arrest records remain as such against those
people. : .

Second, we got a question covered by that same report, and in that
report neutral observers, doing studies for the Commission at that
time, stated that their observations were that blacks were in a much
greater position to be arrested than were their white counterparts.
They used, for example, that in a major, large urban area, North or
South, the prospects of the black youth or older black citizens being
arrested for doing the same actions done by white citizens were
greatly higher. ‘ o

The question of asking about criminal records on an application,
I think has been very well addressed by the general counsel. But we
do go on to the factual happenings concerning that person who has
mage the first error. I think it was well hit by Mr. Schlossberg’s
testimony when he said that often it was the first offense which seems
attractive, or you have stumbled into it by accident, or because of
necessity. The second one seems as easy. After the second, you then
begin to think that perhaps there is a better alternative.

Often, you have precluded yourself from those alternatives because
of a conviction and a criminal record.

Similarly, we go to the question of present laws and how the
courts are beginning to interpret an act passed by the Congress, title
VII of the Human Rights Act of 1964. Title VII did go to the
question that no employer is allowed to not hire or to fire a person
because of his race.

Only a year ago, the Federal court in California read this to mean
that for an employer to ask whether or not a person had been con-
victed was, while neutral on its face, discriminatory in its intent and
its result. This has been the ruling. This has been the way in which
the Federal court system has gone, in terms of title VII, and I think
this is something which the Senators in their deliberations would
want to consider.

To the extent that it was proved that tests had no business nor
necessity and discriminated against certain people are invalid and
unlawful, I think the use of the question “Have you ever been ar-
rested or convicted 2”—if it cannot have any business necessity or
relationship with the job that the man is to be performing—should
be invalid and unlawful.

I think also, as your committee, and I think the Nation, has seen,
the problem with penal institutions in so many cases—they are more
populated by blacks than others—has not had, really, in history, any
real means of reform in terms of being able to train persons for
something once they are, in fact, sent outside, be it by parole-or the
expiration of their sentence. So, what we have is again a rather
vicious circle, po alternatives because of racism, a crime because it
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was, in some cases, & means of survival, leading to a.prison system
in which they receive no training or training which is going to be
nullified by the fact that they have been arrested and convicted.

So, what do we do? We go back to the vicious circle.

I think that I can speak to the peoint—and there will be those,
undoubtedly, who will say “Well, look at yourself” It has been
said, and I laugh everytime it is' said—“Look at yourself. You
have made it.” I do not feel that necessarily it is the Tule, In many
cases it is the exception. I guess I just feel very strongly about the
bill, and I think it does need tightening up in many areas, because
I do feel strongly, as each time I think about the fact that I have
made it this far, I do not feel it was because I was the dream that

AgnGerii:a holds for all people, but that I was there by the grace
of God.

Thank you, sir.

Senator Buroick. Well, thank you for your contribution.

I understand from your testimony—both of you—that you feel
that the thrust of this legislation is in the right direction.

Mr. ScurosseEre. Indeed, Senator.

Senator Burorck. Bear in mind that it has only been within the
last few years that our people have been conscious of this problem,
and when I took over this subcommittee it had a budget of $5,000,
and the only work that was done was to pay traveling expenses
to visit penitentiaries. But thank goodness many of our citizens
are now concerned about this problem.

You feel that this legislation does not go far enough and I am
sure, from some of the comments you have made, that you agree
that this is quite revolutionary in itself and.is the first step.

You spoke of arrest records, and you and I know, as lawyers,
that an arrest record cannot be used against a man at trial, yet
arrest records—and I am not talking about convictions, but just
arrests-—iind their way into reports, eredit bureaus, and everything
else over the land, and yet really do not prove a thing.

MMri 2Scm.ossm«:rt(}. If T may interpose at this point a comment—

fay 1?

Senator Burpick. Yes.

Mr. Scrrosseere. We object to the form 20—I believe it is—to
the Federal application for employment which goes into arrests
for no good reason. You see, we speak from a very peculiar vantage
point. Those of us who represent the labor movement understand
some of these matters in ways that perhaps the rest of the body
. politic does not. I, for instance, Senator, was an organizer before

I became a lawyer, an organizer for a union in the South. I have
been arrested many times. I was involved in picket lines in West
Virginia and Virginia and North Carolina and the Eastern Shore
of Maryland, and Virginia, and I do not remember at this moment—
I have a_record somewhere—how many arrests I have had. It
was for disturbing the peace, or whatever the local police chose
to arrest for, and I would say thaé we are very sensitive to that.
We think that the Federal Government ought to set the example
in this area and ought not to delve into mere arrests. Those of us
in labor know what “arrests” can be. I mean, the labor leaders
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of this country, the people who head the unions, have most often
been arrested, and the loca! police do not write down “This is a
labor dispute and we were trying to break a strike and we arrested
the leader.,” They write it another way—it is either disturbing the
peace, or, in some cases, even “A and B,” assault and battery when
theze is no assault and battery whatsoever. And the fact that you
are not convicted nevertheless means that when you apply for
employment, with many private employers, and shamefully, with
the Federal Government, you must recall those arrests, even though
they tell us nothing.

Senator Burpick. Now, we start with that premise that arrest
records do not prove anything and it is a smudge on a man’s record
because he has never had his day in court. Then, we take this step,
at this particular time in our history—And how much further can
we go? The studies show that the chances of rehabilitation are
greater after 8 man has his first transgression, and that is the rea-
son why this first step is made on first offenders.

Now, this bill is not in final form, This is the starting point of
what we think we should do, and so we leok for your testimony,
and we appreciate your testimony. We are going to have further
hearings—many days of hearing—on this bill to just see how far
we can go and what the support will be. Jp—

Now, it is entirely possible that after a man has been arrested
and pleads guilty and is on probation that maybe a year is enough,
to ascertain his fitness for the quieting of his record. We are not
sure. But I think, and I think my colleagues and much of the
country think, we will require a pretty high standard before we
remove the records of conviction. because we want to make sure
that the man is rehabilitated. The time period is more or less
arbitrary, and we will have to find our way on that,

Now, I was very much impressed with your comments on section
7(b). The staff had a great deal of trouble on that and what to
do with that question, and it is true, as you said in your testimony,
that this permits a man to lie. And how to get at it—Maybe your
suggestion is much better. But he is going to be constantly asked
in an oral or off-the-cuff manner if he has heen arrested, and our
only thought was that, as a matter of law, he has no arrest records
when as a matter of fact he did have. So, I am impressed with your
suggestion, and we are going to give it a lot of consideration.

Mr., Scurosssere. Thank you, sir.

Senator Burpick. But this is troublesome; how to get at this one.

Mr. Faerg. I think what is happening, if we are to consider that
in most cases a person who commits an offense is convicted, sent to
prison or has his sentence suspended, is going to return, basically,
to the same community. In some cases, if he commits an offense in
Michigan he is going to be put under that jurisdiction’s parole
officer, and, therefore, particularly in small communities, it is going
to be known anyway, and there is no way of getting around that.
I guess the question does go to how do you just avoid—I mean, I
find it a bit inconsistent as to section 7 as to how you deal with
the two. Similarly, T cah see in most cases no real business necessity
or purpose in be served by asking: “Have you ever been arrested
or convicted ”




Senator Burorox, Well, what*does the man-do when he is asked
the question ? , -

Mr. ScurossBEra. What we are suggesting that there be Federal
law which would say in this-area that an employer has to ask the
question so the man can answer it honestly: “Have you ever been
‘convicted ?” as this writer in the American Bar Association is sug-

_gesting, adding the qualifying phrase, the prohibition against in-
quiry as to whether a person has ever been convicted unless there is
a qualifying phrase “which has not been annulled or which has
occurred within the past 5 years.”

In other words, that the question would have to be asked so that
it could be truthfully answered.

And the more we have found this in our private system of law—
and we have worked this out with employers, for instance, we ex-
punge records, classification of employment records filled out by
employees, with General Motors, Ford and Chrysler and with the
agricultural implement industry, after 5 years. After 5 years, the
statute of Iimitations forbids an employer to inquire. It is our pri-
vate statute of limitations. Forbids an employer to inquire into those
matters, and we would urge that you give some more consideration
to that. Maybe your way is the only way it can be done.

Senator Burpick. We certainly will, because it has been very
troublesome to me. And I think you have a good suggestion there.

Mr. Scrvrosssere. Thank you.

Senator Burpick. We know that having these training programs
in the prisons—and we have some good ones in the Federal systems,
I think, because I have seen some that were very good programs—
may all go for naught. If a man can become a sheetmetal worker or
be a furnitu.e repairman or work with punch cards or anything of
the kind, it will all go for naught if he cannot make use of it when
he gets out.

And let us not forget, the name of this game of rehabilitation
is “jobs.” If he does not have the opportunity for jobs, he is going
to go back to what he did before.

Now, as to whether this should apply to those that have been ar-
rested and convicted more than once, the argument could be made
that a man that has been convicted five or six times might bs more
easily rehabilitated than somebody who was convicted once, and this
is a fact; but we are dealing with setting some guidelines; we are
breaking new ground in this field, and we are going to have to rely
upon the witnesses like yourselves as to what you think the public
will accept.

Mzr.-Scurosseere. Well, I do want to say that I bring you, Mr.
Chairman, the personal greetings of President Leonard Woodcock
of the UAW. We, as an institution, all of us who lave looked at
this matter, say that we are very grateful to you for your humani-
tarian attitude and for your forwa. d-looking approach in approach-
ing this legislation.

Now, I do not want to leave the impression that we are ungrate-
ful. We think you are trying to make our society a better place in
which to live, and a fair and an equitable society, and we are very
grateful. -
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Senator Burprck. And I hope that you understand that from the
testimony in the hearings, we will put forth a bill which will be
one that will keep this thrust.

Mr, ScuLossBERG, Thank you.

'lSIenator Burpick. I think the staff has a few questions here. We
will see.

Mr. Meexer. Mr. Schlossberg, on your proposal of the language
for the handling of the record in the employment situation, do you
think that there might be some means by which—I do not like to
use the term “enforcement,” because that is not a good word, but
some means of assuring that an individual is asked only this ques-
tion in the way you specified in the employment situation?

Mr. ScurossBere. Yes, I do, and I do not have any easy answer
to that. But it seems to me that certain answers suggest themselves,
that there could be a fine for those who refuse—they are in inter-
state commerce, and over them you have jurisdiction, and so on—
who refuse to ask the question properly. In other words, who took
advantage of this situation. And I believe, moreover, that public
interest lawyers and union lawyers, and others; should feel it in-
cumbent upon themselves to prosecute in cases like this in civil suits.
I assume that we are talking now about convicts whose civil rights
have been restored, and this does become then a civil rights matter.
And T believe that imaginative lawyers can find ways for private
actions. It might be that you could have legislation to correct mis-
behavior by employers and agents of employers in this situation,
not cnly javing fines but treble-damage suits so that private at-
torneys or attorneys general could be encouraged to bring such liti-
gation. .

Mr. Faer#. I think, to add to that, that title VII has been used
in such manner since about 1970, and I mean it started with a case
in QCalifornia, Gregory v. Litton, and there have been some six or
seven since that time. And I think this has been a question that
they could see that while the question was neutral on its face it had
discriminatory overtones with the result being the same way; so, this
may be something perhaps that you would want to write in the bill
allowing the courts, the Federal courts, to be open for this purpose.
I am not exactly sure what you would want to write in and structure
in, but there have been ways that the courts have been used to knock
out such questions. :

Mr. ScrLossBErG. Mr. Beidler has suggested to me that you might
also authorize an injunction by the Department of Justice where an
employer shows a pattern or practice along this line, similar to the
Department of Justice suits that have been authorized but not
brought under title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.

Myr. Meexer. Would you, by the way, send to us your private law.
of the auto industry on employment of ex-offenders?

Mr. Scmrosseere. What I may have to send you is stipulations
that have been agreed to in arbitration decisions, and becomes the
common law. But where we have it in contracts, I can do that, and
I will get together for you a packet of either contract clauses or
arbitration rulings. Some of these things are not codified into what
we would call formal contract language but are codified by agree-
ment of the parties in practice.
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But, as best I can, I will submit that information.

Senator Burpick. Using your term, is this modern common law?

Mr. ScrrosseerG. It is modern industrial common law, T believe,
Mr. Chairman. ) o

Senator Burpick. Now, I think we can find no disagreement in
the fact that arrest records are an impediment that should be re-
moved, particularly in all cases where the cases have been dismissed
or the action has been dropped in some way. If arrest records con-
tinue, it seems to be an injustice.

Mr. ScrrossErG. I agree with that, and I hope you would extend
that prohibition to the Federal Government. )

Senator Burpick. Now, you have suggested that there be no im-
pediment from pending criminal charges and arrest records, to
granting an order nullifying the record showing such as a criminal
conviction—would this not require the court to ask whether an in-
dividual was living lawfully and what the trial court may do with
the pending charges? ) i

In other words, you have an arrest pending which has not been
concluded. Do you not think that the court would have a right to
inquire into that, before granting these orders? _

Mr. Faprf. I do not know. I think if we took the ratio or arrests-
to-convictions, which is generally rather low—and I believe 2 years
ago-there was a study in Los Angeles that showed that out of some-
thing like 72 percent of the persons arrested only 18, in fact, were
convicted. . .

Senator Burpick. In a case where the man comes in and applies
for a quieting of record and at that particular time there is an
urrest and a charge pending against him which has not been disposed
of, do you not think that the trial court would have a right to delay,
assertaining whether or not there is any merit to that charge, before
he grants this order of expungement? )

Mr. Faprt. That would be a valid action. T mean, I can see no
problem with that. It is where—and I think this is where our worry
comes in—they decide it based on the fact they have been arrested
without waiting for a disposition.

Unless you have something else to offer, I want to thank you for
your contribution this morning. i

Mr. ScrrosseeEre. We thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Burpick. And you are going to help us put forth what I
hope will be a good piece of legislation. ) o

Mr. ScrrosssEre. Well, with your name on it, T am sure it will be.

Senator Buroick. Mr. Schlossberg’s full statement will be made
a part of the record at this point. o ‘ i ]

Without objection, at this time I would like to have the biographical
sketch of Mr. Schlossberg made a part of the record at the time he was
called to testify.

(The biographical sketch of Stephen I. Schlossberg follows:)

BIOGRAPHICAL SKETCHES

1

Stephen I. Schlossberg, Detroit, Mich.; general counsel, Unitgd Auto Work-
ers; born in Roanoke, Virginia and graduate of the Univgrswy of. Virginia
Law School, where he was awarded Order of the Coif. Jom_ed Ux.uted Auto
Workers in 1963 ; author of Organizing In The Law, first published in 1967.
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TESTIMONY OF STEPHEN I. SCHLOSSBERG, GENERAL COUNSEL OF THE UAW

Mr. Chairman, Members of the Committee: The International Union, United .
* Automobile, Aerospace and Agricultural Implement Workers of America, UAW
is an organization composed of nearly a million and a half members. Long
ago this Union determined that it could not properly serve the full and com-
plete interests of its members and their families if it confined itself to narrow,
parochial interests. We have come frequently to Capitol Hill and to various
government agencies to seek, in behalf of our members and their families,
avenues for the improvement of the quality of American life. We have testi-
fled before this Committee, for instance, on such broad matters as electoral
reform, equal rights for women, civil rights and on nominations to the Supreme
Court. In that spirit we come here today.

Qur Union welcomes this opportunity to testify in favor of Senate Bill
No. 2732 and to suggest some improvements to it. The UAW believes that a
person who has paid his debt to society should not be prevented from taking
his rightful place in society and in the labor force because of previous in-
discretion or transgression of the law. All of us are familiar, undoubtedly,
with the “model citizen” whose path to a distinguished life or career is
blocked by the words: CRIMINAL RECORD. A bill such as the one before
your committee is needed for many reasons, only two of which we will discuss
here. .

THE PROBLEM OF RECIDIVISM

Many leading authorities on criminology have taken the position that many
recidivists are such because they find themselves in the position of having had
few alternatives available to them. The system presently works this way: the
released convict—having served his sentence and, theoretically, paid his debt
to society-——nevertheless finds employers unwilling to hire him, finds that he
is not bondable, quickly learns that any skills or training that he may have
amassed while in prison is neutralized, if not nullified, by the inability to
procure meaningful or gainful employment. Thus, after imprisonment, his,.
second period of punishment begins. Social and economic ostracism often pro-
vide a worse punishment than jail. The alternatives are bleak: welfare, which
strips him of much of his dignity, not to mention the burden it places on
society ; dead-end jobs, which leave him in the lowest economic strata as well
as with the stark realization that the job soon may be phased out or mechanized
out of existence; or @ return to crime. Faced with these possibilities, the ex-
convict faces, at best, a relatively hopeless future. Such a set of circumstances
seems destined, in too many cases, to lead to the enactment of a vicious, self-
fulfilling prophecy: the first criminal act, followed by the imprisonment and
release, followed by unrealistically drab alternatives, ending with the commis-
sion of another crime. This cycle satisfies only those who would have us believe
that there is some validity to the offensive observation, “once a criminal, always
a criminal.”

THE PROBLEM OF UNDERUTILIZATION OF MANPOWER

The presence of a criminal record often precludes a person from consideration
of a wide range of professions: law, medicine, teaching, law enforcement, to
name just a few. At a period in time when our society is both crying out for
quality in the above professions, as well as experiencing a woeful shortage, we
cannot be afforded the luxury of denying admission to a professional, sufficiently
qualified except for a criminal record.

Unfortunately, many persons who have previously been convicted of a crime
preclude themselves from even considering areas where licensing, and thus re-
jection, is a factor. The Senate has taken, in the recent past, some forward
looking steps in the area of opening opportunities to minorities and disadvan-
taged groups to obtaining college and job training. Yet, notwithstanding such
legislation, the hope it provides is no more than a cruel hoax or unfancied illu-
sion to many whose criminal records will only act as & bar to realization of a
dream,

Congress has long been aware of the problems which face & person who has
been convicted of a crime and must live with that record. As early as 1950,
legislation to quiet criminal records had been enacted into law. In 1950, the
Youth Corrections Act enabled a youthful offender to have his record ex-
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punged upon showing that he had been rehabilitated and readjusted. The 91st
Congress took even further steps in regards to nullifying criminal records in
passage of the Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and Conirol Act, the
Organized Crime Control Act and the D.C. Court Reform and Oriminal Pro-
cedure Act., All of these, while extremely important, failed to reach a large
group of persons. It iz because of the breach still remaining that a bill such
as 8, 2782 is necessary.

THE BILL AND SOME NEEDED AMENDMENTS

The Bill, while undoubtedly a big first step, falls short of alleviating the
woes of many reformed convicts, For example, the Act would apply to first
offenders. We feel that by this shortcoming in the Bill, all persons who, while
having two or more convictions, have led exemplary lives since their last
offense are excluded from the pool of persons affected.

At 2 minimum, we urge this committee to add langnage which will permit
a person with only two strikes against him, so to speak, to be included within
the purview of this legislation. Sometimes, it is the second offense and convic-
tion which lead a person to the realization that crime does not pay. Thus,
second offenders should be given the same consideration under this Act as first
offenders. For these persons, protection under this Act is sorely needed.

Similarly, this Act does not speak to the issue of whether several counts of
a crime are to be handled as one offense or multiple. For example, if a person
is convicted of possession and sale of stolen goods as well as transporting them
acrois state lines, does this mean that he is guilty of one (1) cr of three (3)
offenses? We are of the opinion that the logie of the circumstances as well as
the intent of the Act dictate that multiple counts be deemed as one action, i.e.
one offense.

In Section 4 of the Act presently under consideration, it is unclear whether
a person, whose conviction has been held invalid, by review or appeal, must
also wait for a perlod of three (8) to five (B) years before applying for an
order to guiet the criminal record. This same lack of clarity is present in §6
of the Bill which speaks of efrcumstances where an arrested party is released,
an indictment is dismissed or an accused is fotind not guilty. Does a person
in these categories, too, have to await the passing of the 3-5 year period?

We would propose that, where a person falls within the ambits of §§4 or 5,
such persons be immediately eligible to petitlon the U.S. District Court to
order a nullification of their records. It is our view that to do otherwise would
be tantamount to penalizing one, not for a criminal conviction, but rather for
being unfortunate enough to have been arrested, indicted, or found innocent
after a trial. The better view is to allow the immediate expunging of the
record so as to encourage the potential for gainful employment. The basie
presumption of our legal system, l.e., one Is innocent until proven guilty,
dictates that a person so exonerated be permitted an immediate means of
silencing any eriminal records. ‘

The above-cited legal presumption of innocence similarly leads us to rec-
ommend to the committee that Section 6(2) be modified. Under Section 6(2),
an otherwise qualified applicant could not seek a quieting of his previous
criminal record if he was—

«Under arrest or indictment or was on trial or had an outstanding warrant
for his arrest, In connection with the violatlon of a felony or serious mis-
demeanor under any law of the United States or any State.”

Under the language of this bill at present, one who seeks an order to expunge
is deemed unworthy not because of a second or subsequent criminal conviction
but simply because there is an arrest, warrant for arrest or reason to believe
that he will be found guilty of a subsequent crime, In short, the mere allega-
tion, substantiated by an arrest, warrant or trial, no matter how speclous, 1s
sufficient to deny a man the proteciions otherwise afforded him by this Act.

The potential for abuse 18 very grave should mere arrest serve as the
mechanism by which a “new start” is short circuited. Many members of the
Senate have decrled the arrest procedures of some police forces who, when
confronted by mass but peaceful demonstrations, feel compelled to make mass
arrests not due to unlawful behavior but often due to frustration. A person
caught in such a “sweep” would be denied the effects of this bill. We urge that
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this committee seriously consider modifying this Act so as to continue to give
credence to the time-honored theory: “A man is innocent until proven guilty.”
We do not wish to suggest that Section 6(2) will be abused but we do fear
that an inadvertent or erroneous arrest will undermine the general thrust and
purpose of thig Act.

We are seriously concerned also about the use, distribution or dissemination
of the nullified record. Section 7 of this Act does place prohibition upon the
use and disclosure of previous criminal records and logical inconsistencies.

he general thrust of Section 7(b) is to authorize lying as to one’s previous
record of arrest, conviction, indictment, incarceration, etc. In no other area
of the law is one given Congressional permission to lie or deviate, drasticalty,
from the truth. We would propose that this committee adopt a more sound
policy. We would submit that this Aet contain language prohibiting the inquiry
into a person’s criminal background unless the question contains an exculpatory
proviso.

Speaking in the June, 1969 edition of the American Bar Association Journal,
Pasco L. Schiavo said in his article, “Condemned by the Record,”

“In addition to provision for expungement of the record, legislatures should
enact prohibitions against inquiry as to whether a person had been convicted
of a crime unless there is the qualifying clause—‘which has not been annulled
or has occurred within the past five years.’ Questions as to ‘arrest’ only should
be completely prohibited.” (Vol. 55, p. 543.)

Te indeed are somewhat troubled by the logic which demands that the truth
to told when under oath but cut back such policy in “special” cases.

Moreover, in the employment setting, we fear that notwithstanding this Act,
employers who ask a question of arrest or conviction will feel justified in dis-
missing an employee where he denies a criminal record by virtue of-a nullifica-
tion of same, In short, mandatory elimination of such questions is the only
realistic alternative to the language of the Act.

We would also suggest that the committee consider a review procedure.
Under this procedure, an applicant who seeks to quiet his records could appeal
an adverse decision to a three-judge panel for review. It is our feeling that
should the request for a nullification order be denied, the rejected party
should be entitled as a matter of right to appeal such a decision.

Moreover, where the application is denied, the applicant should be given a
reason, in writing, for such a denial. The written denial and rebutting evidence
could therefore be the record for a review by the three judge court sitting in
the same distriet in which the application wag made. Justice and fairness dic-
tates that one man should not serve as the judge of last resort in matters as
crucial as these, '

We focus our attention now on the time limitations as established in Sections
3(a) (1) and 3(a) (2). We propose that the period which must elapse before an
application can be made should be substaniially reduced. Under Senate Bill
2732, a person who, following conviction, has his sentence suspended, is given
probation, or who is fined in lieu of an incarceration must wait thirty-six (86)
months before he is eligible to petition the court. We think the period should
be reduced to twelve (12) months.

Consider, by way of a hypothetical case, the following: John, age 22, is con-
victed of a crime and given a 2-year suspended sentence. In the two years, in
which he’is under the Court's jurisdiction, he is neither arrested, tried or con-
victed of any subsequent crimes. He is now 24, Under the proposed bill, he
must allow three additional years to elapse before he may seek a court ordered
expunging of his record. Thus, finally, at age 27, he may say, “I have never
been arrested, or convicted.”

No beneficial purpose is served by the lengthy 36-month period. In fact,
we fail to see the logic of the stringent requirement which forces him to
await the cormpletion of the time he must remain under the “jurisdiction of
the court in connection with such conviction;” where a person has been fined,
had his sentence suspended or placed on probation, he should be eligible for
a nullification order one year from the day the sentence was passed, or be-
came final,

Section 3(a) (2) places a jlve-year waiting period upon a person who has
been incarcerated. This period is far too iong and should indeed extend to a
period no greater than three years. Our recommendation to the committee is
that a person tried, convicted and sentenced, be eligible to apply for the
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£ this Act, three years after the date of his release fr_om p.nsoni
?ggsﬁfesg of Wheth’er thig release was through parole, commugathn oé lsoerlfg
tence or a clemency order. We see 1o useful purpose served b_y ?}:cm_g s
period to elapse hefore one may petition the com-t_for a null}ﬁlcsa 1gp lfr taéed
Tn the Congressional Record of October 20, 1971, Senator Burdick s
